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the motion must be withdrawn along 
with the complaint, and the complain-
ant must serve copies of the notice of 
withdrawal on all proposed respondents 
and on the embassies that were served 
with copies of the complaint and mo-
tion pursuant to § 210.54. 

(b) An investigation shall be insti-
tuted by the publication of a notice in 
the FEDERAL REGISTER. The notice will 
define the scope of the investigation 
and may be amended as provided in 
§ 210.14 (b) and (c). 

(c) If the Commission determines not 
to institute an investigation on the 
basis of the complaint, the complaint 
shall be dismissed, and the complain-
ant and all proposed respondents will 
receive written notice of the Commis-
sion’s action and the reason(s) there-
for.

§ 210.11 Service of complaint and no-
tice of investigation. 

(a)(1) Notwithstanding the provisions 
of § 210.54 requiring service of the com-
plaint by the complainant, the Com-
mission, upon institution of an inves-
tigation, shall serve copies of the com-
plaint and the notice of investigation 
(and any accompanying motion for 
temporary relief) upon each respondent 
and the embassy in Washington, DC of 
the government of each foreign coun-
try represented by each respondent. All 
respondents named after an investiga-
tion has been instituted and the gov-
ernments of the foreign countries they 
represent shall be served as soon as 
possible after the respondents are 
named. 

(2) The Commission shall serve copies 
of the notice of investigation upon the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services, the U.S. Department of Jus-
tice, the Federal Trade Commission, 
the U.S. Customs Service, and such 
other agencies and departments as the 
Commission considers appropriate. 

(b) With leave from the presiding ad-
ministrative law judge, a party may at-
tempt to effect personal service of the 
complaint and notice of investigation 
upon a respondent, if the Secretary’s 
efforts to serve the respondent by cer-
tified mail have been unsuccessful. If 
the party succeeds in serving the re-
spondent by personal service, the party 
must notify the administrative law 

judge and file proof of such service 
with the Secretary. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 60 
FR 53119, Oct. 12, 1995]

Subpart C—Pleadings
§ 210.12 The complaint. 

(a) Contents of the complaint. In addi-
tion to conforming with the require-
ments of § 201.8 of this chapter and 
§§ 210.4 and 210.5 of this part, the com-
plaint shall— 

(1) Be under oath and signed by the 
complainant or his duly authorized of-
ficer, attorney, or agent, with the 
name, address, and telephone number 
of the complainant and any such offi-
cer, attorney, or agent given on the 
first page of the complaint; 

(2) Include a statement of the facts 
constituting the alleged unfair meth-
ods of competition and unfair acts; 

(3) Describe specific instances of al-
leged unlawful importations or sales, 
and shall provide the Tariff Schedules 
of the United States item number(s) for 
importations occurring prior to Janu-
ary 1, 1989, and the Harmonized Tariff 
Schedule of the United States item 
number(s) for importations occurring 
on or after January 1, 1989; 

(4) State the name, address, and na-
ture of the business (when such nature 
is known) of each person alleged to be 
violating section 337 of the Tariff Act 
of 1930; 

(5) Include a statement as to whether 
the alleged unfair methods of competi-
tion and unfair acts, or the subject 
matter thereof, are or have been the 
subject of any court or agency litiga-
tion, and, if so, include a brief sum-
mary of such litigation; 

(6)(i) If the complaint alleges a viola-
tion of section 337 based on infringe-
ment of a U.S. patent, or a federally 
registered copyright, trademark, or 
mask work, under section 337(a)(1) (B), 
(C), or (D) of the Tariff Act of 1930, in-
clude a description of the relevant do-
mestic industry as defined in section 
337(a)(3) that allegedly exists or is in 
the process of being established, in-
cluding the relevant operations of any 
licensees. Relevant information in-
cludes but is not limited to: 

(A) Significant investment in plant 
and equipment; 
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(B) Significant employment of labor 
or capital; or 

(C) Substantial investment in the ex-
ploitation of the subject patent, copy-
right, trademark, or mask work, in-
cluding engineering, research and de-
velopment, or licensing; or 

(ii) If the complaint alleges a viola-
tion of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 
1930 based on unfair methods of com-
petition and unfair acts that have the 
threat or effect of destroying or sub-
stantially injuring an industry in the 
United States or preventing the estab-
lishment of such an industry under sec-
tion 337(a)(1)(A) (i) or (ii), include a de-
scription of the domestic industry af-
fected, including the relevant oper-
ations of any licensees; or 

(iii) If the complaint alleges a viola-
tion of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 
1930 based on unfair methods of com-
petition or unfair acts that have the 
threat or effect of restraining or mo-
nopolizing trade and commerce in the 
United States under section 
337(a)(1)(A)(iii), include a description of 
the trade and commerce affected. 

(7) Include a description of the com-
plainant’s business and its interests in 
the relevant domestic industry or the 
relevant trade and commerce. For 
every intellectual property based com-
plaint (regardless of the type of intel-
lectual property right involved), in-
clude a showing that at least one com-
plainant is the owner or exclusive li-
censee of the subject intellectual prop-
erty; and 

(8) If the alleged violation involves 
an unfair method of competition or an 
unfair act other than those listed in 
paragraph (a)(6)(i) of this section, state 
a specific theory and provide corrobo-
rating data to support the allegation(s) 
in the complaint concerning the exist-
ence of a threat or effect to destroy or 
substantially injure a domestic indus-
try, to prevent the establishment of a 
domestic industry, or to restrain or 
monopolize trade and commerce in the 
United States. The information that 
should ordinarily be provided includes 
the volume and trend of production, 
sales, and inventories of the involved 
domestic article; a description of the 
facilities and number and type of work-
ers employed in the production of the 
involved domestic article; profit-and-

loss information covering overall oper-
ations and operations concerning the 
involved domestic article; pricing in-
formation with respect to the involved 
domestic article; when available, vol-
ume and sales of imports; and other 
pertinent data. 

(9) Include, when a complaint is 
based upon the infringement of a valid 
and enforceable U.S. patent— 

(i) The identification of each U.S. let-
ters patent and a certified copy thereof 
(a legible copy of each such patent will 
suffice for each required copy of the 
complaint); 

(ii) The identification of the owner-
ship of each involved U.S. letters pat-
ent and a certified copy of each assign-
ment of each such patent (a legible 
copy thereof will suffice for each re-
quired copy of the complaint); 

(iii) The identification of each li-
censee under each involved U.S. letters 
patent; 

(iv) When known, a list of each for-
eign patent, each foreign patent appli-
cation (not already issued as a patent), 
and each foreign patent application 
that has been denied corresponding to 
each involved U.S. letters patent, with 
an indication of the prosecution status 
of each such foreign patent application; 

(v) A nontechnical description of the 
invention of each involved U.S. letters 
patent; 

(vi) A reference to the specific claims 
in each involved U.S. letters patent 
that allegedly cover the article im-
ported or sold by each person named as 
violating section 337 of the Tariff Act 
of 1930, or the process under which such 
article was produced; 

(vii) A showing that each person 
named as violating section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930 is importing or sell-
ing the article covered by, or produced 
under the involved process covered by, 
the above specific claims of each in-
volved U.S. letters patent. The com-
plainant shall make such showing by 
appropriate allegations, and when prac-
ticable, by a chart that applies an ex-
emplary claim of each involved U.S. 
letters patent to a representative in-
volved domestic article or process and 
to a representative involved article of 
each person named as violating section 
337 of the Tariff Act or to the process 
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under which such article was produced; 
and 

(viii) Drawings, photographs, or 
other visual representations of both 
the involved domestic article or proc-
ess and the involved article of each 
person named as violating section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930, or of the proc-
ess utilized in producing the imported 
article, and, when a chart is furnished 
under paragraph (a)(9)(vii) of this sec-
tion, the parts of such drawings, photo-
graphs, or other visual representations 
should be labeled so that they can be 
read in conjunction with such chart; 
and 

(10) Contain a request for relief, and 
if temporary relief is requested under 
section 337 (e) and/or (f) of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, a motion for such relief 
shall accompany the complaint as pro-
vided in § 210.52(a) or may follow the 
complaint as provided in § 210.53(a). 

(b) Submissions of articles as exhibits. 
At the time the complaint is filed, if 
practicable, the complainant shall sub-
mit both the domestic article and all 
imported articles that are the subject 
of the complaint. 

(c) Additional material to accompany 
each patent-based complaint. There shall 
accompany the submission of the origi-
nal of each complaint based upon the 
alleged unauthorized importation or 
sale of an article covered by, or pro-
duced under a process covered by, the 
claims of a valid U.S. letters patent the 
following: 

(1) Three copies of each license agree-
ment arising out of each involved U.S. 
letters patent, except that, to the ex-
tent that a standard license agreement 
is used, three copies of the standard li-
cense agreement and a list of the li-
censees operating under such agree-
ment will suffice; 

(2) One certified copy of the U.S. Pat-
ent and Trademark Office prosecution 
history for each involved U.S. letters 
patent, plus three additional copies 
thereof; and 

(3) Four copies of each patent and ap-
plicable pages of each technical ref-
erence mentioned in the prosecution 
history of each involved U.S. letters 
patent. 

(d) Additional material to accompany 
each registered trademark-based com-
plaint. There shall accompany the sub-

mission of the original of each com-
plaint based upon the alleged unau-
thorized importation or sale of an arti-
cle covered by a Federally registered 
trademark, one certified copy of the 
Federal registration and three addi-
tional copies, three copies of each li-
cense agreement (if any) concerning 
use of the trademark, except that if a 
standard license agreement is used, 
three copies of that agreement and a 
list of the licensees operating under it 
will suffice; 

(e) Additional material to accompany 
each complaint based on a non-Federally 
registered trademark. There shall accom-
pany the submission of the original of 
each complaint based upon the alleged 
unauthorized importation or sale of an 
article covered by a non-Federally reg-
istered trademark the following: 

(1) A detailed and specific description 
of the alleged trademark; 

(2) Information concerning prior at-
tempts to register the alleged trade-
mark; and 

(3) Information on the status of cur-
rent attempts to register the alleged 
trademark. 

(f) Additional material to accompany 
each copyright-based complaint. There 
shall accompany the submission of the 
original of each complaint based upon 
the alleged unauthorized importation 
or sale of an article covered by a copy-
right one certified copy of the Federal 
registration and three additional cop-
ies, three copies of each license agree-
ment (if any) concerning use of the 
copyright, except that if a standard li-
cense agreement is used, three copies 
of that agreement and a list of the li-
censees operating under it will suffice; 

(g) Additional material to accompany 
each registered mask work-based com-
plaint. There shall accompany the sub-
mission of the original of each com-
plaint based upon the alleged unau-
thorized importation or sale of a semi-
conductor chip in a manner that con-
stitutes infringement of a Federally 
registered mask work, one certified 
copy of the Federal registration and 
three additional copies, three copies of 
each license agreement (if any) con-
cerning use of the mask work, except 
that if a standard license agreement is 
used, three copies of that agreement 
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and a list of the licensees operating 
under it will suffice; 

(h) Duty to supplement complaint. 
Complainant shall supplement the 
complaint prior to institution of an in-
vestigation if complainant obtains in-
formation upon the basis of which he 
knows or reasonably should know that 
a material legal or factual assertion in 
the complaint is false or misleading. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994; 59 FR 64286, Dec. 14, 
1994]

§ 210.13 The response. 
(a) Time for response. Except as pro-

vided in § 210.59(a) and unless otherwise 
ordered in the notice of investigation 
or by the administrative law judge, re-
spondents shall have 20 days from the 
date of service of the complaint and no-
tice of investigation, by the Commis-
sion under § 210.11(a) or by a party 
under § 210.11(b), within which to file a 
written response to the complaint and 
the notice of investigation. When the 
investigation involves a motion for 
temporary relief and has not been de-
clared ‘‘more complicated,’’ the re-
sponse to the complaint and notice of 
investigation must be filed along with 
the response to the motion for tem-
porary relief—i.e., within 10 days after 
service of the complaint, notice of in-
vestigation, and the motion for tem-
porary relief by the Commission under 
§ 210.11(a) or by a party under § 210.11(b). 
(See § 210.59.) 

(b) Content of the response. In addition 
to conforming to the requirements of 
§ 201.8 of this chapter and §§ 210.4 and 
210.5 of this part, each response shall be 
under oath and signed by respondent or 
his duly authorized officer, attorney, 
or agent with the name, address, and 
telephone number of the respondent 
and any such officer, attorney, or 
agent given on the first page of the re-
sponse. Each respondent shall respond 
to each allegation in the complaint and 
in the notice of investigation, and shall 
set forth a concise statement of the 
facts constituting each ground of de-
fense. There shall be a specific admis-
sion, denial, or explanation of each fact 
alleged in the complaint and notice, or 
if the respondent is without knowledge 
of any such fact, a statement to that 
effect. Allegations of a complaint and 
notice not thus answered may be 

deemed to have been admitted. Each 
response shall include, when available, 
statistical data on the quantity and 
value of imports of the involved arti-
cle. Respondents who are importers 
must also provide the Harmonized Tar-
iff Schedule item number(s) for impor-
tations of the accused imports occur-
ring on or after January 1, 1989, and the 
Tariff Schedules of the United States 
item number(s) for importations occur-
ring before January 1, 1989. Each re-
sponse shall also include a statement 
concerning the respondent’s capacity 
to produce the subject article and the 
relative significance of the United 
States market to its operations. Re-
spondents who are not manufacturing 
their accused imports shall state the 
name and address of the supplier(s) of 
those imports. Affirmative defenses 
shall be pleaded with as much speci-
ficity as possible in the response. When 
the alleged unfair methods of competi-
tion and unfair acts are based upon the 
claims of a valid U.S. letters patent, 
the respondent is encouraged to make 
the following showing when appro-
priate: 

(1) If it is asserted in defense that the 
article imported or sold by respondents 
is not covered by, or produced under a 
process covered by, the claims of each 
involved U.S. letters patent, a showing 
of such noncoverage for each involved 
claim in each U.S. letters patent in 
question shall be made, which showing 
may be made by appropriate allega-
tions and, when practicable, by a chart 
that applies the involved claims of 
each U.S. letters patent in question to 
a representative involved imported ar-
ticle of the respondent or to the proc-
ess under which such article was pro-
duced; 

(2) Drawings, photographs, or other 
visual representations of the involved 
imported article of respondent or the 
process utilized in producing such arti-
cle, and, when a chart is furnished 
under paragraph (b)(1) of this section, 
the parts of such drawings, photo-
graphs, or other visual representations, 
should be labeled so that they can be 
read in conjunction with such chart; 
and 

(3) If the claims of any involved U.S. 
letters patent are asserted to be invalid 
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or unenforceable, the basis for such as-
sertion, including, when prior art is re-
lied on, a showing of how the prior art 
renders each claim invalid or unen-
forceable and a copy of such prior art. 
For good cause, the presiding adminis-
trative law judge may waive any of the 
substantive requirements imposed 
under this paragraph or may impose 
additional requirements. 

(c) Submission of article as exhibit. At 
the time the response is filed, if prac-
ticable, the respondent shall submit 
the accused article imported or sold by 
that respondent, unless the article has 
already been submitted by the com-
plainant.

§ 210.14 Amendments to pleadings and 
notice; supplemental submissions; 
counterclaims. 

(a) Preinstitution amendments. The 
complaint may be amended at any time 
prior to the institution of the inves-
tigation. 

(b) Postinstitution amendments gen-
erally. (1) After an investigation has 
been instituted, the complaint or no-
tice of investigation may be amended 
only by leave of the Commission for 
good cause shown and upon such condi-
tions as are necessary to avoid 
prejudicing the public interest and the 
rights of the parties to the investiga-
tion. A motion for amendment must be 
made to the presiding administrative 
law judge. If the proposed amendment 
of the complaint would require amend-
ing the notice of investigation, the pre-
siding administrative law judge may 
grant the motion only by filing with 
the Commission an initial determina-
tion. All other dispositions of such mo-
tions shall be by order. 

(2) If disposition of the issues in an 
investigation on the merits will be fa-
cilitated, or for other good cause 
shown, the presiding administrative 
law judge may allow appropriate 
amendments to pleadings other than 
complaints upon such conditions as are 
necessary to avoid prejudicing the pub-
lic interest and the rights of the par-
ties to the investigation. 

(c) Postinstitution amendments to con-
form to evidence. When issues not raised 
by the pleadings or notice of investiga-
tion, but reasonably within the scope 
of the pleadings and notice, are consid-

ered during the taking of evidence by 
express or implied consent of the par-
ties, they shall be treated in all re-
spects as if they had been raised in the 
pleadings and notice. Such amend-
ments of the pleadings and notice as 
may be necessary to make them con-
form to the evidence and to raise such 
issues shall be allowed at any time, and 
shall be effective with respect to all 
parties who have expressly or impliedly 
consented. 

(d) Supplemental submissions. The ad-
ministrative law judge may, upon rea-
sonable notice and on such terms as 
are just, permit service of a supple-
mental submission setting forth trans-
actions, occurrences, or events that 
have taken place since the date of the 
submission sought to be supplemented 
and that are relevant to any of the 
issues involved. 

(e) Counterclaims. At any time after 
institution of the investigation, but 
not later than ten business days before 
the commencement of the evidentiary 
hearing, a respondent may file a coun-
terclaim at the Commission in accord-
ance with section 337(c) of the Tariff 
Act of 1930. Counterclaims shall be 
filed in a separate document. A re-
spondent who files such a counterclaim 
shall immediately file a notice of re-
moval with a United States district 
court in which venue for any of the 
counterclaims raised by the respondent 
would exist under 28 U.S.C. 1391. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994]

Subpart D—Motions
§ 210.15 Motions. 

(a) Presentation and disposition. (1) 
During the period between the institu-
tion of an investigation and the assign-
ment of the investigation to a pre-
siding administrative law judge, all 
motions shall be addressed to the chief 
administrative law judge. During the 
time that an investigation or related 
proceeding is before an administrative 
law judge, all motions therein shall be 
addressed to the administrative law 
judge. 

(2) When an investigation or related 
proceeding is before the Commission, 
all motions shall be addressed to the 
Chairman of the Commission. A motion 

VerDate Mar<21>2002 10:34 Apr 16, 2002 Jkt 197058 PO 00000 Frm 00137 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\197058T.XXX pfrm03 PsN: 197058T


		Superintendent of Documents
	2014-12-11T13:54:41-0500
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




